
Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – July 22, 2024   Page 1 of 3 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE City Hall 
 300 W. Main Street 

 Grand Prairie, 

Texas 

Meeting Agenda  

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting  

Monday, July 22, 2024 6:30 PM City Hall - Council Chambers, 

300 W. Main Street 

REGULAR MEETING 

Call to Order 

Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes on any item not the agenda by 

completing and submitting a speaker card. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Planning and Zoning Commission may conduct a closed session, if needed, in accordance with 

Texas Government Code Section 551.071 “Consultation with Attorney” to discuss legal matters 

pertaining to agenda items. Any final action will be taken during open session. 

PUBLIC HEARING CONSENT AGENDA 

Items listed on the Public Hearing Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be approved 

by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of the Public Hearing Consent Agenda 

items unless requested.  If discussion is desired on an item, it will be considered separately.  The 

Commission may ask questions of those present on an item from the Public Hearing Consent Agenda. 

1. Approval of Minutes of the July 8, 2024, P&Z meeting  

2. PLT-24-05-0025 - Final Plat - Alfaro Addition. Final Plat combining four lots into one, 

resulting in a single industrial lot on 0.368 acres. Lots 13-16, Block F, Twin Airports Industrial 

Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, Zoned LI-LS, and addressed as 1900 

Airport St 

PUBLIC HEARING  

Members of the public may address the Commission on items listed on the agenda under Public Hearing 

Items.  Persons wishing to address the Commission must first complete a request to speak card.  A 

person may also use the request to speak card to indicate his or her support or opposition to a case 

without speaking.  Cards may be picked up at the desk by the entrance to the City Council Chambers 

1



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – July 22, 2024   Page 2 of 3 

and may be deposited at the desk or given to a staff member.  Speaking time is generally limited to five 

minutes per speaker.  Per the by-laws of the Planning and Zoning Commission, the applicant and those 

favoring the request shall have a maximum of 30 minutes, including rebuttal, to present their arguments 

for the request.  Those in opposition to a request shall have a maximum of 30 minutes to present their 

arguments against the request. When a large group is present, it is encouraged that representatives be 

appointed to speak for the group so that redundant testimony is minimized.  Commissioners may have 

questions of those speaking at the public hearing. The time used to answer the Commission's questions 

will not be deducted from the allotted 30 minutes.  These rules may be temporarily suspended, in whole 

or in part, by a unanimous vote of the Commission. 

3. CPA-24-07-0009 - Comprehensive Plan Amendment - 905 MacArthur (City Council District 

5). Amendment to the Future Land Use Map to change the designation from Mixed Use to 

Commercial/Retail/Office on a portion of 10.70 acres. A portion of Tract 20, Joseph Graham 

Survey, Abstract No. 506, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, zoned Commercial (C) 

District, within the IH-30 Corridor Overlay, with an approximate address of 905 Macarthur 

Blvd 

4. ZON-24-06-0010 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan – 905 MacArthur (City Council District 5). 

Zoning Change from a Commercial (C) District to a Planned Development District for 

Commercial Uses and a Concept Plan depicting retail and restaurant developments on 10.70 

acres. Tract 20, Joseph Graham Survey, Abstract No. 506, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas 

County, zoned Commercial (C) District, within the IH-30 Corridor Overlay, with an 

approximate address of 905 Macarthur Blvd 

5. ZON-24-06-0017 - Zoning Change – 1423 E Marshall (City Council District 3). Zoning 

Change from Commercial (C) to Single Family-Five (SF-5) on 0.15 acres. Lot 2, Block C, 

Carbaugh Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) 

District, and addressed as 1423 E Marshall Dr 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Hall is wheelchair accessible. If you plan to attend this public meeting and you have a 

disability that requires special arrangements, please call 972-237-8255 at least 24 hours in advance. 

Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your needs. 

MESSAGE OF RELIGIOUS WELCOME 

As many of you are aware, we customarily begin our meetings with an invocation. This prayer is 

intended for the benefit of the board members and is directed to them and not the audience. Those who 

deliver the invocation may reference their own religious faith as you might refer to yours when offering 

a prayer. We wish to emphasize, however, that members of all religious faiths are welcome, not only in 

these meetings, but in our community as well. The participation of all our citizens in the process of self-

government will help our fine city best serve the good people who live here. Employees and audience 

members are welcome to pray or not pray, and this choice will have no bearing on any vote made by the 

board. 

 

Certification 
 

2



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – July 22, 2024   Page 3 of 3 

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A, the Planning 

and Zoning Commission agenda was prepared and posted July 19, 2024. 
 

 

Monica Espinoza, Planning Secretary 

 

3



Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 07/22/2024 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner 

TITLE: Approval of Minutes of the July 8, 2024, P&Z meeting  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – July 08, 2024   Page 1 of 6 

 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE City Hall 
 300 W. Main Street 

 Grand Prairie, 

Texas 

Meeting Minutes  

Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting  

Monday, July 08, 2024 5:30 PM City Hall - Briefing Room 

BRIEFING SESSION 

Chairperson Smith called the Briefing meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. 

Call to Order 

PRESENT 

Chairperson Cheryl Smith 

Vice Chairperson Julia Perez 

Commissioner John Fedorko 

Commissioner Michelle Madden 

Commissioner CJ Ramirez (entered meeting at 6:00 p.m.) 

Commissioner Christopher Okoli 

Commissioner Tai Jones-Chapman (entered meeting at 5:39 p.m.) 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Ana Coca 

Commissioner Frank Gonzalez 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Chairperson Smith called a closed session at 5:50 p.m., in accordance with Texas Government Code 

Section 551.071 “Consultation with Attorney” to discuss legal matters pertaining to agenda item seven. 

Closed session ended at 6:30 p.m. 

Agenda Review 

Staff briefed commissioners on cases. 

6:30 PM Council Chambers 

REGULAR MEETING 

Chairperson Smith called the meeting to order at 6:37 p.m. 

Call to Order 

PRESENT 

Chairperson Cheryl Smith 

5

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – July 08, 2024   Page 2 of 6 

Vice Chairperson Julia Perez 

Commissioner John Fedorko 

Commissioner Michelle Madden 

Commissioner CJ Ramirez 

Commissioner Christopher Okoli 

Commissioner Tai Jones-Chapman 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Ana Coca 

Commissioner Frank Gonzalez 

 

Commissioner Perez led the Invocation. 

Chairperson Smith led the Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag and Texas Flag. 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

There were no citizen comments. 

PUBLIC HEARING CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion made by Commissioner Julia Perez, Seconded by Commissioner Fedorko to close the public 

hearing and approve items one and two. The motion carried unanimously. 

1. Approval of Minutes of the June 24, 2024, P&Z meeting  

Approved on Consent Agenda 

2. PLT-24-04-0020 – Final Plat – Lakeview Pointe (City Council District 6). Final Plat for a new 

single-family subdivision consisting of 138 residential lots and nine (9) open space lots on 

37.945 acres. Being a tract out of C. L. Dodson, Abstract No. 292 and J. Lawrence Surveys, 

Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, PD-447, generally located east of FM 

661 and approximately 1,400 feet south of Gifco Road 

Approved on Consent Agenda 

 

PUBLIC HEARING POSTPONEMENT, RECESS, CONTINUATIONS 

Motion made by Commissioner Julia Perez, Seconded by Commissioner Fedorko to close the public 

hearing and table item three to the P&Z meeting of August 12, 2024. The motion carried unanimously. 

3. SUP-24-03-0014 - Specific Use Permit – Cigar Lounge at 2100 N Highway 360 (City Council 

District 1). Specific Use Permit for a smoking lounge in an existing commercial lease space. 

Tract 1, G.S.C. Development Corporation Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, 

Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) and addressed as 2100 N Hwy 360, Suite 2006 

Tabled 

6

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – July 08, 2024   Page 3 of 6 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION 

4. STP-24-05-0022 - Site Plan - Constellation Rock Island (City Council District 1). Site Plan for 

a 286,357 sq. ft. industrial warehouse building on 16.83 acres. Multiple tracts out of John C. 

Read, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Planned Development (PD-450), 

within SH 161 Corridor Overlay, and approximate addresses of 3514-3560 Hardrock Rd and 

4701 Hardrock Rd 

 Senior Planner Abdul Ghous presented the case report and gave a power point presentation. 

He stated the applicant intends to construct an office/warehouse building totaling 286,357 sq. 

ft. on 16.83 acres. City Council must approve a site plan for any project involving industrial 

uses or that is new construction exceeding five acres or greater.  Development at this location 

requires City Council approval of a Site Plan because the property is for industrial uses. The 

purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in the Unified 

Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site planning 

techniques.  The UDC identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments.  Criteria 

include density and dimensional standards, landscaping and screening requirements, and 

architectural design for special districts. In addition, UDC’s Appendix X, Industrial 

Development Standards addresses potential adverse environmental, visual, and truck traffic 

externalities associated with large warehouses, outside storage, and distribution-logistical 

developments. The applicant is not requesting any variances. The Development Review 

Committee (DRC) recommends approval. 

 Kaylie Flynn 1201 N. Bowser Rd. Richardson TX., stepped forward representing the case.  

 Chairperson Smith asked if they have reached out to their neighbors. Ms. Flynn stated no. Mrs. 

Smith inquired about the environmental issues. Ms. Flynn stated that they have completed a 

phase one ESA, and they are pursuing the recommendations.  

Motion made by Commissioner Fedorko, Seconded by Commissioner Okoli to close the public 

hearing and approve STP-24-05-0022. The motion carried unanimously. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING  

5. SUP-24-05-0023 - Specific Use Permit – Smoking Lounge at 2410 Brady Ln (City Council 

District 3). Specific Use Permit for a smoking lounge in an existing commercial lease space. 

Lot 11B, Sharpston Heights 2, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned General 

Retail (GR), and addressed as 2410 Brady Ln 

 Senior Planner Abdul Ghous the applicant intends to operate an approximately 3,648 sq. ft. 

smoking lounge in an existing commercial lease space located at 2410 Brady Ln. A smoking 

lounge requires a Specific Use Permit. The purpose of the Specific Use Permit process is to 

identify those uses which might be appropriate within a zoning district, but due to either their 

location, functional or operational nature, could have a potentially negative impact on 

surrounding properties; and provide for a procedure whereby such uses might be permitted by 

further restricting or conditioning them to eliminate such probable negative consequences. The 

applicant is not requesting any variances. 

7

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – July 08, 2024   Page 4 of 6 

 The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommended approval with the following 

conditions: 

1. The development and operations shall adhere to the City Council approved Exhibit B - 

Site Plan and Exhibit C - Operations Plan. 

2. Eight Liners shall not be allowed on the premises.   

3. Operating hours shall be limited to daily from 5 p.m. until 2:00 a.m. 

4. Individuals under the age of 18 will not be allowed in the establishment. 

5. Individuals under the age of 21 will not be allowed to smoke, possess, or purchase 

tobacco products, including e-cigarettes or vape devices. 

6. Identification of all patrons shall be checked by staff prior to patrons entering the 

establishment to confirm the patron is at least 18 years of age. 

7. Staff shall issue a wristband to patrons that are at least 21 years of age to indicate 

that they are allowed to smoke. 

8. At the time of purchase, staff shall check identification for all individuals purchasing 

tobacco products or other items which require the purchaser to be of a certain age. 

9. The business shall be operated in compliance with all state, federal, and local laws 

and regulations including those prohibiting or related to gambling, smoking, tobacco, 

and product packaging. 

10. A “Food Establishment” as defined by Section 13-131 of the Grand Prairie Code of 

Ordinances, as amended, shall not be operated in conjunction with the Smoking 

Lounge use.   

11. A noise study is required prior to the issuance of any building permits.  

12. City Council shall conduct a public hearing in one year after City Council approval of 

the SUP ordinance to confirm compliance with all applicable codes which shall 

include, but not be limited to, the requirements of the SUP ordinance, the Unified 

Development Code and Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, City adopted 

building codes, City adopted fire codes, and other applicable regulatory requirements. 

Malipal Batth 3620 Coldstream Dr Irving TX., stepped forward representing this case. She 

stated she chose Grand Prairie for their business location because they believe it’s going to be 

a great asset to the city, and they want to be role models for this sort of SUP down the road. 

There have been negative cogitations associated with the hookah lounge, but their strategy will 

be zen-like for relaxation. Gurpreet Kaur 3620 Coldstream Dr. Irving TX., noted support of 

this request.  

Commissioner Madden stated in Texas smoking is only allowed for 21 and over, do they have 

plans to restrict entry for 21 and older. Mrs. Kaur stated they would not allow anyone under 21 

to enter the business and would be using wristbands.  

Commissioner Champman asked what kind of security they will have. Mrs. Kaur stated 

whatever is recommended.  

Motion made by Commissioner Perez, Seconded by Commissioner Madden to close the public 

hearing and approve SUP-24-05-0023 per DRC recommendations but updating items four and 

six to 21 years of age. The motion carried unanimously. 

8

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – July 08, 2024   Page 5 of 6 

 

6. SUP-24-05-0021 - Specific Use Permit – 2100 E. Main St (City Council District 5). Specific 

Use Permit for Auto Dealer (Non-Franchise Used), Auto Repair (Major), Auto Body and Auto 

Paint Shop at 2100 E Main St. Lot 2, Block 2, Business Center Addition, City of Grand Prairie, 

Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-60, and addressed as 2100 E Main St 

 Senior Planner Abdul Ghous presented the case report and gave a power point presentation. 

He stated the applicant intends to operate an Auto Dealership (Non-Franchise Used), Auto 

Repair (Major), Auto Body and Auto Paint Shop facility at 2100 E Main St. All four of these 

uses require a Specific Use Permit in the PD-30 district, which has a base zoning of Light 

Industrial. The purpose of the Specific Use Permit process is to identify those uses that might 

be appropriate within a zoning district, but due to either their location, functional or 

operational nature, could have a potentially negative impact on surrounding properties; and 

provide for a procedure whereby such uses might be permitted by further restricting or 

conditioning them to eliminate such probable negative consequences. The applicant is not 

requesting any variances.  

 The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the following 

conditions: 

1. The business shall operate in compliance with all state, federal, and local laws and 

regulations 

2. The business shall obtain a Certificate of Occupancy and Auto Related Business 

permit. 

 

Mauricio Rodriguez 4450 Prestson Circle Dallas Tx., stepped forward representing the case. 

He stated they would only be working on Mazda brand vehicles by appointment only. Raza 

Hussain 1137 Holly Dr Carrolton Tx., stepped forward representing the case.  

 

Commissioner Madden asked do they work on their vehicles indoors or outdoors. Mr. 

Rodriguez stated indoors, and they have the garage door open because they currently don’t 

have A/C but they are looking into installing it, in addition to a new paint booth with a fire 

suppression system.  

Motion made by Commissioner Ramirez, Seconded by Commissioner Chapman to close the 

public hearing and approve SUP-24-05-0021 per staff recommendations. The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

7. SUP-24-05-0022 - Specific Use Permit - Registered Group Home at 430 Beatty Dr (City 

Council District 3). Specific Use Permit for a registered group home on 0.16 acres. Lot 25, 

Block B, Royal Valley Estates No. 1 Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, zoned 

Single Family-Three Residential District, and addressed as 430 Beatty Dr 

 Planner Brittany Musser presented the case report and gave a power point presentation. She 

stated the applicant is currently operating a Registered Group Home, which requires City 

9

Item1.



Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting – July 08, 2024   Page 6 of 6 

Council approval of a Specific Use Permit when located within 2,500 feet of another group 

living residential use. All Group Living Units are now required to register with the city per 

Ordinance No. 11382. A nearby group home was legally operating before this location, which 

triggered the requirement for a Specific Use Permit. The purpose of the Specific Use Permit 

process is to identify those uses which might be appropriate within a zoning district, but due to 

either their location, functional or operational nature, could have a potentially negative impact 

upon surrounding properties; and provide for a procedure whereby such uses might be 

permitted by further restricting or conditioning them to eliminate such probable negative 

consequences. 

 The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of the request with the 

following conditions: 

1. The number of occupants shall not exceed five.  

2. The applicant shall maintain all required state licenses. 

Monica Armstrong 8610 Granville Dr Dallas TX., stepped forward representing the case. 

Patrice Moreland 815 Crystal Oak Ln Arlington TX., stepped forward in support of this case. 

She stated having to go through the SUP process is discriminatory for this business. Serita 

Miller 430 Beatty Dr Grand Prairie TX., noted support of this request.  

Gary Reed 433 Kirby Creek Rd Grand Prairie TX., stepped forward in opposition of this 

request. He stated concern with this business being in a residential area and across the street 

from an elementary school.  

Rickey Hicks 438 Beatty Dr Grand Prairie TX., stepped forward in opposition of this request. 

He stated concern with a business in a residential area.  

Motion made by Commissioner Perez, Seconded by Commissioner Okoli to close the public 

hearing and approve SUP-24-05-0022 per staff recommendations. The motion carried 

unanimously. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Chairperson Smith moved to adjourn the meeting. The meeting adjourned at 7:36 p.m. 

 

____________________________________ 

Cheryl Smith, Chairperson 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

John Fedorko, Secretary 

10

Item1.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 07/22/2024 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Abdul R. Ghous, AICP, Senior Planner  

TITLE: PLT-24-05-0025 - Final Plat - Alfaro Addition. Final Plat combining 

four lots into one, resulting in a single industrial lot on 0.368 acres. Lots 

13-16, Block F, Twin Airports Industrial Addition, City of Grand 

Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, Zoned LI-LS, and addressed as 1900 

Airport St 

APPLICANT: Luke Keeton, Keeton Surveying  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

SUMMARY: 

Final Plat combining four lots into one, resulting in a single industrial lot on 0.368 acres. Lots 13-16, 

Block F, Twin Airports Industrial Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, Zoned LI-LS, 

and addressed as 1900 Airport St. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The purpose of the Final Plat is to combine four lots into one industrial lot on 0.368 acres. 

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

Table 1. Zoning and Land Use 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North LI Auto Related Businesses  

South LI-LS Single-family Residence & Trucking Business  

West LI-LS Auto Related Business 

East LI-LS Auto Related Businesses 

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION: 

The plat is dedicating all the required right-of-way. 

 

11

Item2.



Page 2 of 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval. 

12

Item2.



Planning and Development

¬«180

Bil
l Ir

win
 St

Curtiss St

Airport St

E Main St

Poulin Av

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈¦75

CASE LOCATION MAP
PLT-24-05-0025
1900 AIRPORT RD

Location
Street Center Line
Parcels

µ
Date: 6/4/2024

0 0.018
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Planning and Development
City of Grand Prairie

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

13

Item2.



14

Item2.



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 07/22/2024 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant 

PRESENTER: June Sin, Senior Planner  

TITLE: CPA-24-07-0009 - Comprehensive Plan Amendment - 905 MacArthur 

(City Council District 5). Amendment to the Future Land Use Map to 

change the designation from Mixed Use to Commercial/Retail/Office 

on a portion of 10.70 acres. A portion of Tract 20, Joseph Graham 

Survey, Abstract No. 506, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, zoned 

Commercial (C) District, within the IH-30 Corridor Overlay, with an 

approximate address of 905 Macarthur Blvd 

APPLICANT: Bob Cabel, Miami Partners LLC 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff is unable to support the request because it is inconsistent with the 

FLUM. However, staff notes that existing zoning is consistent with the 

proposed Planned Development District. With conditions, staff finds 

the proposed development could be appropriate for the subject location. 

Please note that the FLUM is not the property zoning; it is the 

recommended future land use for potential development per the city’s 

comprehensive plan. 

  

SUMMARY: 

Amendment to the Future Land Use Map to change the designation from Mixed Use to 

Commercial/Retail/Office on 10.70 acres. A portion of Tract 20, Joseph Graham Survey, Abstract No. 

506, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, zoned Commercial (C) District, within the IH-30 Corridor 

Overlay, with an approximate address of 905 Macarthur Blvd. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The applicant wishes to rezone the subject property from a Commercial (C) District to a Planned 

Development District for retail and restaurant development on 10.70 acres. This request is for a change 

from Mixed Use to Commercial, Retail, Office on the Future Land Use Map (FLUM).  

Areas with the Mixed Use designation are intended for an appropriately planned mixture of non-

residential and residential uses. They are referred to as mixed-use because it is envisioned that these 

areas would be integrated retail, public, office, and entertainment developments, with a residential 

15

Item3.



Page 2 of 2 

component appropriately blended into larger-scale buildings that would otherwise be used to support 

those uses independently. Mixed-use areas are intended to provide flexibility for the City and the 

development community to encourage innovative, unique, and sustainable developments. Residential 

uses in mixed-use developments have begun to appeal to seniors or younger generations. Walkable 

connections to shopping and dining should be key components of the mixed-use areas. 

Commercial uses are more intense than retail establishments, yet they also provide goods and services 

for the public. Examples of commercial establishments would include hotels, automotive services, and 

big box retailers. Retail land use is intended to provide for a variety of restaurants, shops, grocery stores, 

and personal service establishments. Office areas provide for low- to medium-rise suburban-scale 

developments. Generally, permitted uses include corporate, professional, medical, and financial offices 

and offices for individual and non-profit organizations. 

Any amendments to the Comprehensive Plan and accompanying Future Land Use Map are required to 

be reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission. Section 1.11.5.1 of the Unified Development 

Code of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, stipulates that the Planning and Zoning Commission shall 

conduct a public hearing and make recommendations to the City Council on amendments to the 

Comprehensive Plan. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The FLUM designates this location as Mixed Use. Staff is unable to support the request because the 

proposal is inconsistent with the FLUM. However, staff notes that the existing zoning is consistent with 

the proposed Planned Development District. With conditions, staff finds the proposed development 

could be appropriate for the subject location. 

Please note that the FLUM is not the property zoning; it is the recommended future land use for 

potential development per the city’s comprehensive plan. 

16

Item3.



Planning and Development

Gifford St

E Ih 30 Eb  
E Ih 30 Wb  

Ih 30 Svc Eb

Macarthur Blvd

Bowles St

Ne
 31

st S
t

Johnson St

Ih 30 Svc Wb
Ne

 28
th 

St

Ne
 29

th 
St

Ne
 32

nd
 St

Ne
 27

th 
St

Leonard St

Ga
rde

n W
ay Ne 32nd St

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈¦75

CASE LOCATION MAP
ZON-24-06-0018
905 MACARTHUR BLVD

Location
Street Center Line
Parcels

µ
Date: 6/14/2024

0 0.09
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Planning and Development
City of Grand Prairie

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 1 of 3 CAP-24-07-0009

17

Item3.



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 2 of 3

18

Item3.



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 3 of 3

19

Item3.



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 07/22/2024 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant 

PRESENTER: June Sin, Senior Planner  

TITLE: ZON-24-06-0010 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan – 905 MacArthur 

(City Council District 5). Zoning Change from a Commercial (C) 

District to a Planned Development District for Commercial Uses and a 

Concept Plan depicting retail and restaurant developments on 10.70 

acres. Tract 20, Joseph Graham Survey, Abstract No. 506, City of 

Grand Prairie, Dallas County, zoned Commercial (C) District, within 

the IH-30 Corridor Overlay, with an approximate address of 905 

Macarthur Blvd 

APPLICANT: Bob Cabel, Miami Partners LLC 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve with conditions. Staff notes that the existing zoning is 

consistent with the proposed Planned Development District. With 

conditions, staff finds the proposed Planned Development District 

could be considered appropriate for the subject location. 

  

SUMMARY: 

Zoning Change from a Commercial (C) District to a Planned Development District for Commercial Uses 

and a Concept Plan depicting retail and restaurant developments on 10.70 acres. Tract 20, Joseph 

Graham Survey, Abstract No. 506, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, zoned Commercial (C) 

District, within the IH-30 Corridor Overlay, with an approximate address of 905 Macarthur Blvd. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The applicant is requesting approval of a Concept Plan for a future commercial development on 10.70 

acres, consisting of 52,600 sq. ft. of speculative retail and restaurant buildings. 

The purpose of the Concept Plan is to review the overall development and intended uses. All other 

development requirements associated with parking, driveway access, landscaping, and building design 

will be reviewed during the Site Plan process per Unified Development Code (UDC) standards. The 

concept plan depicts uses requiring a Specific Use Permit (SUP). The concept plan does not approve 

SUP-required uses; all future developments requiring a SUP shall be individually approved by the City 

Council. 

20

Item4.



Page 2 of 3 

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties. 

Table 1. Zoning and Land Use 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Light Industrial (LI) IH 30/Undeveloped 

South 
Commercial (C)/ Single 
Family Residential (SF-4)  

Truck & R.V. Storage/ 
Single Family Residences 

West PD-41 Industrial Warehouses 

East Light Industrial (LI) U-Haul 

HISTORY: 

 September 1985: The City’s 1985 zoning map shows the property zoned as Commercial (C). 

 February 26, 2024: Planning and Zoning recommended, by a vote of 8-0, a request for a 

convenience store with gas sales at the northeast corner. The item is scheduled for City Council 

consideration on August 6, 2024 (Case Number SUP-23-10-0043). 

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION: 

The Concept Plan depicts a drive-through restaurant, two full-service restaurants, one large retailer, and 

two multi-tenant buildings. The proposed uses are speculative, and no tenants have been identified. 

However, they are consistent with the area's underlying zoning.  

ZONING REQUIREMENTS: 

Density and Dimensional Requirements 

The property is subject to density and dimensional requirements in Article 6 of the Unified Development 

Code (UDC). The following table summarizes these requirements.  

Table 2. Density and Dimensional Requirements 

Standard Required Proposed Compliance 

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 5,000 465,926 Yes 

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 50 966 Yes 

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 406 Yes 

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 25 Yes 

Height (Ft.) 25 25 Yes 

Max. Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 0.5:1 0.5:1 Yes 

VARIANCES: 

The applicant is not requesting any variances.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval with the following conditions: 

1. The applicant shall request a Specific Use Permit for any uses allowed by SUP under the UDC.  

21

Item4.



Page 3 of 3 

2. The applicant may be required to provide a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) before the Site Plan is 

presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

22

Item4.



Planning and Development

Gifford St

E Ih 30 Eb  
E Ih 30 Wb  

Ih 30 Svc Eb

Macarthur Blvd

Bowles St

Ne
 31

st S
t

Johnson St

Ih 30 Svc Wb
Ne

 28
th 

St

Ne
 29

th 
St

Ne
 32

nd
 St

Ne
 27

th 
St

Leonard St

Ga
rde

n W
ay Ne 32nd St

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈¦75

CASE LOCATION MAP
ZON-24-06-0018
905 MACARTHUR BLVD

Location
Street Center Line
Parcels

µ
Date: 6/14/2024

0 0.09
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Planning and Development
City of Grand Prairie

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 1 of 3

23

Item4.



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 2 of 3

24

Item4.



Exhibit A - Boundary Description
Page 3 of 3

25

Item4.



Exhibit B - Site Plan
Page 1 of 1

26

Item4.



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

COMMUNICATION 

 

 

MEETING DATE: 07/22/2024 

REQUESTER: Monica Espinoza, Administrative Supervisor 

PRESENTER: Brittany Musser, Planner 

TITLE: ZON-24-06-0017 - Zoning Change – 1423 E Marshall (City Council 

District 3). Zoning Change from Commercial (C) to Single Family-Five 

(SF-5) on 0.15 acres. Lot 2, Block C, Carbaugh Addition, City of Grand 

Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, and 

addressed as 1423 E Marshall Dr 

APPLICANT: Julian Leyva   

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 

  

SUMMARY: 

Zoning Change from Commercial (C) to Single Family-Five (SF-5) on 0.15 acres. Lot 2, Block C, 

Carbaugh Addition, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, and 

addressed as 1423 E Marshall Dr. 

PURPOSE OF REQUEST: 

The purpose of the request is to rezone the property to allow the construction of a single-family 

residence. The property is currently zoned Commercial, which does not allow single-family residential 

use. 

ADJACENT LAND USES: 

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties. 

Table 1. Zoning and Land Use 

Direction Zoning Existing Use 

North Multi-Family One Apartments 

South Commercial  Single Family Residence 

West Commercial Single Family Residence  

East Single Family-Four Single Family Residence  

 

27

Item5.



Page 2 of 3 

HISTORY: 

 September 1985: The City’s 1985 zoning map shows the subject property zoned Commercial. 

CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 

Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map (FLUM) is designed to facilitate the efficient, sustainable, and fiscally sound 

development and redevelopment of Grand Prairie.  The purpose of the FLUM is to serve as an outlook 

for the future use of land and the character of development in the community.  The FLUM, along with 

other community objectives, is used to guide land use decisions. 

The 2018 Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designates this location as Low Density 

Residential. The proposed zoning is consistent with the FLUM.  

ZONING REQUIREMENTS: 

The table below summarizes the requirements for SF-5. If zoning is approved, the applicant must 

comply with the following standards. 

Table 2. Summary of Lot Requirements 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 

The existing lot is on a block that is mostly residential. It is unlikely this area will ever develop as 

commercial. The request is consistent with the adjacent land use and the FLUM.  

PUBLIC NOTICE: 

Notice of this item was published in the Fort Worth Star Telegram and letters were provided to 30 

surrounding properties meeting the distance requirements in the Unified Development Code. As of the 

writing of this staff memo, the following letters have been received: 

In Support: One 

In Opposition: None 

 

Standard SF-5 

Unit Density 8.7 units per acre  

Min. Living Area (Sq. Ft.) 1,600 

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 6,500 

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 60 

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 100 

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 

Internal Side Yard (Ft.) 5 

Rear Setback (Ft.) 10 

Max. Height (Ft.) 25 

Lot Coverage (%) 50 

28

Item5.



Page 3 of 3 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.  

29

Item5.



Planning and Development

Se 
14t

h S
t

Av
en

ue
 B  

Av
en

ue
 A 

 

E Marshall Dr

Lak
ecr

est
 Dr

E Coral Way

Sheridan Dr

¬«342

¬«310

¬«10

¬«161¬«180

¬«352

¬«356

¬«183

¬«360

§̈¦67

§̈¦287

§̈¦175

§̈¦377

§̈¦77

§̈¦75

CASE LOCATION MAP
ZON-24-06-0017
1423 E MARSHALL DR

Location
Street Center Line
Parcels

µ
Date: 6/14/2024

0 0.03
Miles

Exhibit A- Location Map
Page 1 of 1

Planning and Development
City of Grand Prairie

(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

The City of Grand Prairie has prepared maps for departmental use. These are not official maps of the City of Grand Prairie and should not be used for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes but rather for reference. These 
maps are the property of the City of Grand Prairie and have been made available to public based on the Public Information Act. The City of Grand Prairie makes every effort to produce and publish the most current and 
accurate information possible. No warranties, expressed or implied, are provided for the data herein, its use, or its interpretation. Utilization of this map indicates understanding and acceptance of this statement. 

30

Item5.



Exhibit B - Boundary  Description
Page 1 of 1

31

Item5.



Attachment i - Site Plan
Page 1 of 1

32

Item5.



Register Position

Submitted on 17 July 2024, 10:54AM

Receipt number 948

Related form version 6

First Name Ivonne

Last Name Perez

Your Address Line 1 1818 Ave A

Your Address Line 2

City Grand Prairie

State Texas

Zip Code 75051

Case Number zon-24-06-0017

I am registering my: Support

Additional Comments I rather be family home than commercial, no telling what kind of business
will be built there and can cause crime, more traffic rather, and if stays
commercial that is a lost lot for someone or a family that can reside
there.

1 of 1

Attachment i - Support Letters
Page 1 of 1

33

Item5.


	Top
	Item1.	Approval of Minutes of the July 8, 2024, P&Z meeting
	Approval of Minutes of the July 8, 2024 meeting
	Minutes 07-08-24

	Item2.	PZ: PLT-24-05-0025 Alfaro Addition
	2024-07-22 PZ PLT-24-05-0025
	Exhibit A - Location Map
	Exhibit B - Final Plat

	Item3.	PZ: CPA-24-07-0009 905 MacArthur
	2024-07-22 PZ CPA-24-07-0009 - 905 MacArthur
	Exhibit A - Boundary Descrption

	Item4.	PZ: ZON-24-06-0018 905 MacArthur
	2024-07-22 PZ ZON-24-06-0018 - 905 MacArthur
	Exhibit A - Boundary Descrption
	Exhibit B - Concept Plan

	Item5.	PZ: ZON-24-06-0017 1423 E Marshall
	2024-07-22 PZ ZON-24-06-0017 1423 E Marshall
	Exhibit A - Location Map
	Exhibit B - Boundary Description
	Attachment i - Site Plan
	Attachment ii - Support Letters

	Bottom

